
 
 
 

 
 
 

         18 June 2009 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Monday, 29 June 2009 
beginning at 

6:30 pm 
in 

Committee Room, Civic Offices, Leigh Road, Eastleigh 

TO:   
Councillor Louise Bloom BA (Hons)
 Councillor John L Caldwell MBCS CITP
 Councillor Wayne Irish MInstTA
 Councillor Pete Luffman
 Councillor Mrs Maureen A Sollitt
 Councillor Joyce Sortwell
 Councillor Mrs Jane Welsh
 Councillor M J Davies, Parish/Town Council Representative
 Councillor Mrs M Durham, Parish/Town Council Representative
 Councillor Nathan Khan, Parish/Town Council Representative
 Councillor John Sorley, Parish/Town Council Representative
 Mr David Bell, Independent Member
 Ms Victoria Isaac, Independent Member
 Ms Keren Cordwell, Independent Member
 Mr Michael Knott, Independent Member 

 
Staff Contacts: Jon Brown, Assistant Head of Legal and Democratic Services  

Tel: 023 8068 8361: Email:  jon.brown@eastleigh.gov.uk 
   

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/meetings 
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request. 
 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above. 

Civic Offices, Leigh Road, 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 2000/01 
Community Safety Preventing Crime and Disorder 
2002/03 
Fostering Business Growth 
2008/09 
Tackling Climate Change 



AGENDA 
 

1. Election of Chair and Vice-Chair      
  
 Please note these positions must now be filled by Independent Members.  
  
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 6)  
  
 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 November 2008.  
  
3. Apologies     
 
4. Declarations of Interest     
 
5. Review of the first year of the Local Filter arrangements and Code of Conduct 

complaints procedure      
  
 To discuss and review the first year of the local complaints procedure.  
  
6. Proposed Local Assessment Criteria for use by First Filter Sub-Committees  

(Pages 7 - 10) 
 
7. Training of Standards Committee Members      
  
 To discuss any training requirements for Standards Committee Members.  
  

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 21 September 2009 at 6:30 pm 

in the Committee Room, Civic Offices, Leigh 
Road, Eastleigh 

 
 
 



1 

STANDARDS COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 24 November 2008  (6:30 pm – 8:00 pm) 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Councillors 
Councillors Caldwell, Irish, Luffman, Millar, and Mrs Welsh 
 
Parish Members 
Councillor Davies, Mrs Durham and Sorley  
 
Independent Members 
Mr D Bell 
Ms K Cordwell  
Mr M Knott (Chairman) 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Ms Isaac and 
Councillors Bloom and Sortwell 

 
________________________________________ 

 
RECOMMENDED ITEM (REQUIRING A DECISION) 

 
1. CONSULTATION FROM COMMUNITIES AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

ON A NEW CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the Head of Legal and Democratic 
Services, which set out a consultation by the Department for Communities 
and Local Government in respect of a number of proposed revisions to the 
Code of Conduct.  The consultation also sought views on a possible 
Officer Code of Conduct. 
 
The consultation document set out 22 questions for consideration, and the 
Committee was asked to respond to these and recommend a response 
from this Council. 
 
RECOMMENDED - 
 
That Council respond to the ‘Communities in control: Real people, 
real power/Codes of conduct for local authority members and 
employees’ consultation as follows: 
 
- Chapter 2: Code of conduct for local authority members 
 

- Question 1 - Agree that the members’ code should apply 
to a member’s conduct when acting in their non-official 
capacity;   

 

Agenda Item 2

1



2 

- Question 2 - Agree with the definition of ‘criminal 
offence’ for the purpose of the members’ code as 
detailed in paragraphs 2.10 and 2.11 of the consultation 
(that is, any criminal offence for which the member has 
been convicted in a criminal court, but for which the 
member does not have the opportunity of paying a fixed 
penalty instead of facing a criminal conviction); 

 
- Question 3 - Agree with the definition of ‘official 

capacity’ for the purpose of the members’ code as 
detailed in paragraph 2.14 (that is, engaged in the 
business of your authority, including the business of the 
office to which you are elected or appointed, or acting, 
claiming to act or giving the impression that you are 
acting as a representative of your authority);  

 
- Question 4 - Agree that the members’ code should only 

apply where a criminal offence and conviction abroad 
would have been a criminal offence if committed in the 
UK; 

 
- Question 5 - Agree that an ethical investigation should 

not proceed until the criminal process has been 
completed; 

 
- Question 6 - Whilst being comfortable with the proposed 

amendments, the Council reiterates that the registration 
of gifts and hospitality of £25 and over should be 
reviewed as, year on year, £25 has ever-decreasing 
value.  The amount should therefore be increased.  This 
point should be a discussion topic at a future Standards 
Board Conference;   

 
- Question 7 - There are not considered to be any aspects 

of conduct currently included in the members’ code that 
are not required;  

 
- Question 8 - There are not felt to be any aspects of 

conduct in a member’s official capacity not specified 
that should be included;  

 
- Question 9 - Agree that the proposed timescale of two 

months, during which a member must give an 
undertaking to observe the members’ code, starting 
from the date the authority adopts the code, provide 
members with sufficient time to undertake to observe 
the code;  

 
- Question 10 - Agree with the addition of the new 

‘Members should not engage in conduct which 
constitutes a criminal offence’ general principle, to be 
applied specifically to conduct in a member’s non-
official capacity; 

2



3 

 
- Question 11 - Agree that, for the purposes of the revised 

General Principles Order, that ‘criminal offence’ be 
defined as any conduct that has resulted in a criminal 
conviction;  

 
- Question 12 - Agree that ‘official capacity’ be defined as 

“being engaged in the business of you authority, 
including the business of the office to which you are 
elected or appointed, or acting, claiming to act or giving 
the impression that you are acting as a representative of 
your authority” for the purpose of the General Principles 
Order; 

 
- Chapter 3 - Model code of conduct for local government 

employees;   
 

- Question 13 - Do not agree that a mandatory model code 
of conduct for local government employees is needed, 
as there should be sufficient coverage of requirements 
and restrictions set out in an employee’s contract of 
employment.  There should also be local flexibility;    

 
- Question 14 - As such, the proposed employees’ code 

should not be applied to firefighters, teachers, 
community support officers, and solicitors;   

 
- Question 15 - It is not felt that there are any other 

categories of employee in respect of whom it is not 
necessary to apply the code; 

 
- Question 16 - No comment, as the employees’ code is 

not supported;  
 
- Question 17 - Posts that are politically restricted are set 

out in legislation as well as established good practice; 
the selection of ‘qualifying employees’ is therefore 
unnecessary;    

 
- Question 18 - Agree that, should an employees’ code be 

introduced, qualifying employees (ie above a defined 
level of responsibility) should publicly register their 
interests, in the public interest;   

 
- Question 19 - In terms of what should be registered, we 

have no comment on the categories proposed;    
 
- Question 20 - Agree that what is proposed in terms of 

the employees’ code is sufficient in terms of mirroring 
the members’ code;  

3



4 

 
- Question 21 - We have no comment in respect of 

whether the section of the employee’s code which would 
apply to qualifying employees places too many 
restrictions on qualifying employees;  

 
- Question 22 - As we do not support the officer code, 

then it should not be extended to employees of parish 
councils.  In the event of the employees’ code becoming 
mandatory, then it should be applied to parish council 
employees as well. 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 June 2008 be confirmed as 
a correct record. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Members were invited to declare interests in relation to items of business 
on the agenda.  Any interests declared are recorded in the relevant minute 
below. 
 

4. APPOINTMENT OF SUB-COMMITTEE – CONSIDERATION OF 
INVESTIGATION REPORTS 
 
At this stage of the meeting (7.40 pm), all Members, with the exception of 
Ms Cordwell and Councillors Davies and Irish, left the room.  The 
remaining three Members comprised the ‘second stage’ sub-committee to 
consider three exempt investigation reports in respect of code of conduct 
complaints made by a local resident, Mrs Marion Lord.  The complaints 
referred to three Members behaviour at a public meeting.  Ms Cordwell 
chaired the sub-committee meeting. 
 
The investigations had been initiated following consideration of the 
complaints by a ‘first filter’ sub-committee, which recommended that 
investigations should take place.  The investigations had been conducted 
by Susan Joss, Assistant Head of Legal and Democratic Services. 
 
The Investigating Officer had concluded that, in respect of complaints 
against the two borough councillors, there was no case to answer.  
However, in respect of the complaint made about a Hedge End Town 
Councillor, Councillor Nathan Khan, the Investigating Officer had felt that 
there was a case to answer in respect of the second allegation made - that 
Councillor Khan repeatedly ignored requests from the organisers of the 

4



5 

meeting to stop distributing the special “Focus” [a political publication] and 
acted inappropriately in response to their concerns.  Accordingly, the 
Investigating Officer had recommended that a hearing be held within three 
months to consider fully the matter.  Three other allegations had been 
made against Councillor Khan by Mrs Lord, but the Investigating Officer 
had felt that there was no case to answer in respect of these. 
 
The sub-committee worked through the reports and considered the 
findings. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
(1)  That in respect of the complaints made against the two 

borough councillors, there was no case to answer and that no 
further action be taken with the exception of appropriate letters 
being sent to the two Members detailing the sub-committee’s 
findings and, in one case, advice given;  

 
(2)  That in respect of allegations 1, 3 and 4 made against 

Councillor Khan, the Investigating Officer's report be accepted 
that there was no case to answer case to answer; and 

 
(3)  That in respect of allegation 2 made against Councillor Khan - 

that he repeatedly ignored requests from the organisers of the 
meeting to stop distributing the special “Focus” [a political 
publication] and acted inappropriately in response to their 
concerns - there was a case to answer, and that a hearing be 
held within three months to consider the matter fully. 

 
 
(The sub-committee meeting ended at 8.00 pm) 
 

_______________________________________ 
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Declarations of interest were made as follows: 
 

None 
M3707 
 
 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



Assessment Criteria - Standards Committee 

 
 
 

PROPOSED LOCAL ASSESSMENT CRITERIA FOR  
STANDARDS COMMITTEE (CODE OF CONDUCT) COMPLAINTS 

 
The following criteria shall be followed by the First Filter Sub-Committee when 
considering allegations that a Member (which term includes co-opted member or any 
other person subject to the Members’ Code of Conduct) relating to Eastleigh Borough 
Council has failed to follow the Members’ Code of Conduct. 
 
a. If an allegation discloses a potential breach of the Code of Conduct, then 
 the First Filter Sub-Committee will consider what action to take using the 
 following Criteria and the Standards Board for England’s Guidance: 
 
 i. Is the complaint within the jurisdiction of the Committee? 
 
 ii. Is it a complaint against one or more named Members or co-optees of the   
  Authority covered by the Members’ Code of Conduct? 
 
 iii. Was the named Member in the office at the time of the alleged conduct and 
  the Code of Conduct was in force at the time? 
 
 iv. Would the complaint, if proven, be a breach of the Code under which the  
  Member was operating at the time of the alleged misconduct? 
 
 NOTE If the complaint fails one or more of these tests, it cannot be investigated  
  as a breach of the Code. 
 
 v. Is there a prima facie evidence of a breach of the Code? 
 
 vi. Is it serious enough to warrant a sanction? 
 
 vii. Is this part of a continuing pattern of less serious misconduct that is  
  unreasonably disrupting the business of the authority and is there no other 
  avenue left to deal with it except investigation? 
 
 viii. In considering the case, the Panel will take into account the time that has  
  passed since the alleged conduct occurred. 
 
 ix. Would an investigation serve a useful purpose? 
 
 x. Is the case suitable for local investigation? 
 
 xi. Is this case where alternative action such as training or mediation would be 
  more appropriate? 
 
 xii. Would an apology be appropriate? 
 
 xiii. Is it malicious, relatively minor or tit-for-tat? 
 

Agenda Item 6

7



Assessment Criteria - Standards Committee 

 xiv. The same or substantially similar complaint has already been the subject of 
  an investigation or inquiry and there is nothing further to be gained by  
  seeking the sanctions available. 
 
 xv. The complaint concerns acts carried out in the Members’ private life, when 
  s/he is not carrying out the work of the authority or have not misused their  
  position as a member. 
 
 xvi. It appears that the complaint is really about dissatisfaction with a council  
  decision. 
 
 xvii. There is not enough information currently available to justify a decision to  
  refer the matter for investigation. 
 
b. Circumstances when the First Filter Sub-Committee may refer a complaint 
 to the Standards Board for England: 
 
 i. Complaints where the status of the Member(s) or the number of Members  
  about whom the complaint is made would make it difficult for them to deal  
  with the complaint.  For example, where the Member is a Group Leader, or 
  member of the Council’s Cabinet or Standards Committee; 
 
 ii. Complaints where the status of the complainant(s) make is difficult for the  
  Standards Committee to deal with the complaint.  For example, is the  
  complainant a Group Leader, or member of the Authority’s Cabinet or  
  Standards Committee, the Chief Executive, the Monitoring Officer or other  
  senior officer? 
 
 iii. Where there is potential conflict of interest of so many members of the  
  Standards Committee that it could not properly monitor the investigation; 
 
 iv. Where there is a potential conflict of interest of the Monitoring Officer or  
  other officers and a suitable alternative arrangement cannot be put in   
  place to address the conflict. 
 
 v. Where the case is so serious or complex or involving so many Members  
  that it cannot be handled locally; 
 
 vi. Where the complaint requires substantial amounts of evidence beyond that 
  available from the Council’s documents, its Members of officers; 
 
 vii. Where there is substantial governance dysfunction in the Council or its  
  Standards Committee; 
 
 viii. Where the complaint relates to a long-term or systematic Member/Officer   
  bullying which could more effectively be investigated by somebody from  
  outside the Council; 
 
 ix. Where the complaint raises significant or unresolved legal issues on which 
  a national ruling would be helpful; 
 

8



Assessment Criteria - Standards Committee 

 x. Where the public might perceive the Council to have an interest in the  
  the outcome of the case.  For example, if the Council could be liable to  
  judicially review if the complaint was upheld; 
 
 xi Where there are exceptional circumstances which prevent the Authority or 
  its Standards Committee investigation the complaint competently, fairly and 
  in a reasonable period of time or meaning that it would be unreasonable for 
  local provision to be made for an investigation. 
 
c. Assessment Appeals Sub-Committee: 
 
 i. All appeals considered by the Sub-Committee shall be carried out in  
  accordance with the above criteria; 
 
 ii. The Sub-Committee shall decide whether the original decision of   
  Assessments Panel is either upheld or overturned. 
 
NB If there is any conflict between the Standards Board for England’s guidance and this 
criteria, then the Standards Board for England’s guidance shall at all times prevail. 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Proposed Local Assessment Criteria for use by First Filter Sub-Committees

